
1 
 

Cabinet Member for a Greener Powys 
 

 
 
 

 
For further information please contact 

 

 
County Hall 

Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 

LD1 5LG 
 
  
steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk 
01597 826374 

 11/01/2024 
 

 
NOTICE OF INTENDED PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED 

DECISION 
 

The Portfolio Holder has received the following report for a decision to be taken 
under delegated authority. The decision will be taken on 17 Janaury 2024 (i.e. 3 
clear days after the date of this note). The decision will be published on the Council’s 
website but will not be implemented until 5 clear days after the date of publication of 
the decision) to comply with the call-in process set out in Rule 7.35 of the 
Constitution.  

  
1.  SPEED LIMIT MODIFICATIONS - VARIOUS ROADS, TREGYNON AND 

LLANWNOG  
 
(Pages 3 - 16) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
CABINET MEMBER DELEGATED DECISION  

by 
COUNTY COUNCILLOR JACKIE CHARLTON 

CABINET MEMBER FOR A GREENER POWYS 
January 2024 

 
REPORT AUTHOR:  Traffic Officer North, Highways & Technical Services 
  
REPORT TITLE: Speed Limit Modifications – Various Roads, Tregynon 

and Llanwnog. 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision   

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1. This report seeks to secure cabinet member authorisation for local 

highway authority traffic officers to commence the traffic regulation order 
consultation and implementation process to modify the extents of the 
existing speed limits and introduce new speed limits along various roads 
in the villages of Tregynon and Llanwnog following discussions with the 
relevant ward county councillors and community councils. 
 

 
2. Background 
 
1.2. Outline planning consent P/2017/0580 and reserved matters consent 

19/0814/RES has been secured by a developer to erect 5 dwellings and 
associated works on land adjacent to Tyn Y Ddol, Tregynon. The same 
developer has also secured outline planning consent P/2017/0368 and 
reserved matters consent 20/1512/RES to erect 5 dwellings and 
associated works on land adjacent to Church House Farm, Llanwnog.             
One of the developer’s obligations with respect to these planning 
consents was to fund the introduction of modified speed limits along the 
B4389 (Tregynon) and the B4568 (Llanwnog) on the immediate 
approaches to these development sites. As the same developer is 
developing both sites, the local highway authority has agreed that a 
single Traffic Regulation Order could be drawn up to modify the speed 
limits along those roads in both villages. 
 

1.3. The developer paid the Council’s fee to process this Permanent Traffic 
Regulation Order in December 2020, and traffic speed surveys along 
the B4389 at Tregynon were carried out in April 2023 following the 
completion of the new footway to the development site along the B4389 
by the developer. It was decided to delay the processing of this Order 
until such time that the existing speed limits at Tregynon had been 

Page 3

1



modified by the Welsh Government’s legislation to change the restricted 
road speed limit within Wales from 30mph to 20mph in September 2023. 
 

1.4. The developer will also be funding the required signage associated with 
the new and modified speed limits. 
 

1.5. As part of the same traffic regulation order proposal, the local highway 
authority has taken the opportunity to review and modify the existing 
40mph speed limit along the remainder of the B4568 within the village of 
Llanwnog as part of the same Traffic Regulation Order in response to 
residents’ concerns regarding the traffic speeds through Llanwnog and 
to make the speed limit through the village of Llanwnog more compliant 
with the Welsh Assembly Government Circular No: 24/2009 “Setting 
Local Speed Limits in Wales”. 

 
1.6. The proposed new Traffic Regulation Order will include the revocation of 

the existing 40mph speed limit Order along the B4568 at Llanwnog as 
identified below to enable the new speed limit extents to be more clearly 
and accurately defined by the new traffic regulation Order:- 
 
• The County of Powys (County Class II Road No. B.4568 at 

Llanwnog) (40 m.p.h Speed Limit) Order 1992. 
 

1.7. A copy of the Traffic Regulation Order to be revoked and an indicative 
plan showing the extent of that Order is attached at Appendix A for 
reference purposes. 
 

1.8. To avoid any confusion and for the purposes of clarity, the proposed 
speed limit extents contained within the traffic order are to be identified 
on a plan and as written descriptions of individual speed limit extents 
along those roads within that Order. 
 

1.9. The plans attached at Appendix B identify the extents of the existing 
speed limits at Tregynon and Llanwnog along the affected roads and will 
be available to view on the Council’s website during the public 
consultation phase of the traffic order making process. 
 

1.10. The plans attached at Appendix C identify the extents of the proposed 
new and modified speed limits at Tregynon and Llanwnog and will be 
available to view on the Council’s website during the public consultation 
phase of the traffic order making process. 
 

1.11. The Council’s statement of reasons is attached to this report at 
Appendix D. 

 
 
3. Advice 
 
1.12. No other options are available for consideration at this stage of the 

Traffic Regulation Order proposal process. 

Page 4



 
1.13. The County Council has engaged with the ward county councillors and 

the community councils for Tregynon and Llanwnog, and support has 
been expressed for the speed limit proposals by those community 
representatives. 
 

1.14. The proposals support the CIP priority of improving our transport 
infrastructure by making it safer for people to use the highways within 
Montgomery and to encourage active travel movements. 

 
 
4. Resource Implications 
 
1.15. All costs associated with the consultation process, the implementation of 

the Traffic Regular Order and the associated speed limit signage will be 
funded by the developer. 
 

1.16. The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the report and can 
support the recommendations. 

 
 
5. Legal implications 
 
1.17. The Property Lawyer North has reviewed the proposals and it appears 

appropriate as long as the correct procedures are followed. 
 

1.18. The Head of Legal Services and the Monitoring Officer has commented 
as follows: “I note the legal comment and support the recommendation”. 

 
 
6. Climate Change & Nature Implications 
 
1.19. As the proposal relates purely to the introduction of a lower speed limit, 

the proposal will have no negative impact with respect to the Council’s 
Climate and Nature emergency declarations. 

 
 
7. Data Protection 
 
1.20. Personal data will be collected from responses to the public consultation 

and is essential to undertake this statutory requirement for making a 
Traffic Regulation Order.  This data will be collected and managed in 
accordance with the privacy notice that is published on the Traffic Order 
Consultation page on our website. 
 

1.21. The Data Protection Officer notes the processing of personal data under 
the given privacy notice and has no further comments to make. 

 
 
 

Page 5



2. Comment from local member(s) 
 

2.1. The proposal will affect residents, businesses, and visitors to Tregynon 
and Llanwnog. County Councillors Heulwen Hulme and Les George 
have expressed their support for the new speed limit proposals within 
their own wards, as has Dyfed-Powys Police and the community 
councils for Tregynon and Caersws. 

 
 
9.   Impact Assessment 
 
2.2. An impact assessment is not required. Representations from the public 

and any other interested parties will be considered following the legally 
specified public consultation procedure associated with the processing 
of a Traffic Regulation Order. 

 
 
10. Recommendation 
 
Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

To resolve that the Traffic Regulation Order 
consultation procedure is initiated in 
accordance with The Local Authorities' 
Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 for the proposed 
modifications of the existing speed limits 
and the introduction of new speed limits 
along various roads in the villages of 
Tregynon and Llanwnog as set out in the 
plans in Appendix C; and if no substantive 
objections are received the proposal be 
implemented. 

 

To modify the extents of the 
existing national speed limit 
and 40mph speed limits along 
the B4389 and B4568 roads at 
Tregynon and Llanwnog; and 
introduce new 30 mph and 40 
mph speed limits along those 
roads to mitigate speed 
concerns and secure the 
planning gain element of the 
housing development, in the 
interests of highway safety. 

 
Relevant Policy: Corporate Improvement Plan 2021-25 : Improve our 

Infrastructure to Support Regeneration and Attract 
Investment - We will actively compete for any grant 
funding opportunities, and subject to such funding, deliver 
transport infrastructure projects, develop active travel, 
support suitable transport options and improve road safety. 

Within Policy: Y / N Within Budget: Y / N 
 
Relevant Local Member(s): Cllr. Heulwen Hulme - member for the Rhiwcynon 

ward. 
Cllr. Les George – member for the Caersws ward. 

 
Person(s) To Implement Decision: Chris Lloyd 
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented: As soon as possible 
 
Is a review of the impact of the decision required? Y / N 

Page 6



 
 
Contact Officer:       Chris Lloyd  
Tel:             01686 611563  
Email:   chris.lloyd@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service:                  Matt Perry 
Interim Corporate Director:  Matt Perry 
 
Background Papers used to prepare Report: 

• Appendix A – Existing Traffic Regulation Order to be revoked by 
proposed new Traffic Regulation Order. 

• Appendix B - Extents of the existing speed limits at Tregynon and 
Llanwnog along the affected roads. 

• Appendix C – Extents of the proposed new and modified speed limits at 
Tregynon and Llanwnog along the effected roads. 

• Appendix D – Council’s Statement of Reasons. 
 

DELEGATED DECISION NEW REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 4 

Page 7

mailto:chris.lloyd@powys.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Llanwnog

Existing extent of 40mph Speed Limit
imposed by 1992 Traffic Regulation Order

U
2
9
7
9

U2587

U
2
9
8
6

U
2
5
8
7

B
4
5
6
8

B4568

C2066

U
29

31

P
age 10



Cyngor Sir County Council

157.9m

158.8m

161.5m

178.9m

Pumping Station

Tanks

Sewage

1

2

Concrete

Tithebarn

Cottage

Cottages

Mill Lodge

Minffordd Ty'n-y-Ddol

4
0

38

2
8

56

5
4

4
8

4
6

60

4
4

1
9

9

19

1
0

14

26

3

5

11

Maes Aderyn

20

3

Garage

1

1

4

5

2

5

PO

1
7

7

1
9

11

1
5

Yr Haf

2
5

2
1

The Old School Ho

Brynawelon

63

67

9

35

31

69

6

18

61

65

45

51

44

4
7

43

Sludge Tanks

Path

Moat

Tra
ck

FB

Bridge
Tithebarn

Burial Ground

Tregynon

B
 4

3
8
9

T
A

N
-Y

-L
L
A

N

PARC H
AFOD

C
A

E
 M

E
L
Y

N

P
A

R
C

 H
A

F
O

D

TAN-YR-EGLWYS

Sinks

B
e
ch

a
n

B
ro

o
k

Mill L
eat

Existing extent of 30mph Speed Limit imposed by
"The County of Powys (Various Roads) (30mph
Speed Limit) Order 2013" Traffic Regulation Order

U6125

B4389

B
4
3
8
9

C
2
0
1
0

U
6
1
3
9 U

6
1
4
0

P
age 11



Cyngor Sir County Council

Llanwnog

Existing extent of 40mph Speed Limit
imposed by 1992 Traffic Regulation Order

U
2
9
7
9

U2587

U
29

86

U
2
5
8
7

B
4568

B4568

C2066

U
29

31

P
age 12



Cyngor Sir County Council

157.1m

157.9m

158.8m

161.5m

175.5m

178.9m

Pumping Station

Tanks

Sewage

1
2

Concrete

Tithebarn
Cottage

Cottages

Mill Lodge

Minffordd Ty'n-y-Ddol

4
0

38

2
8

56

5
4

4
8

4
6

60

4
4

1
9

1

9
5

8

2
4

2

16
1

19

1
0

2

14

26

3

5

11

Maes Aderyn

20

3

Garage

1

1

10

4

5

2

2

5

PO

1
7

7

1
9

11

1
5

Yr Haf

2
5

2
1

The Old School Ho

Brynawelon

63

67

9

35

31

69

6

18

61

65

45

51

44

4
7

43

Spring

Llys Cynon

Bank

1

chor V
iew

Sludge Tanks

Path

Moat

Tr
ac

k

FB

Bridge
Tithebarn

Burial Ground

Tregynon

B
 4

3
8
9

T
A

N
-Y

-L
L

A
N

PARC H
AFOD

LLYS MELYN

C
A

E
 M

E
L
Y

N

P
A

R
C

 H
A

F
O

D

TAN-YR-EGLWYS

Brook

Bechan

Issues

Sinks

B
e
ch

a
n

B
ro

o
k

Mill L
eat

Proposed new section of 30mph Speed Limit

U6125

B4389
B

4
3
8
9

C
2
0
1
0

U
6
1
3
9 U

6
1
4
0

P
age 13



Cyngor Sir County Council

Llanwnog

Proposed extents of 40mph Speed Limit

Proposed extents of 30mph Speed Limit

U
2
9
7
9

U2587

U
29

86

U
2
5
8
7

B4568

B
4568

C2066

U
29

31

P
age 14



The County of Powys (Various Roads, Tregynon and Llanwnog)                                            
(40 MPH Speed Limit and 30 MPH Speed Limit) Order 2023 

 

Statement of Reasons 
 
Outline planning consent P/2017/0580 and reserved matters consent 19/0814/RES has 
been secured by a developer to erect 5 dwellings and associated works on land adjacent 
to Tyn Y Ddol, Tregynon. The same developer has also secured outline planning consent 
P/2017/0368 and reserved matters consent 20/1512/RES to erect 5 dwellings and 
associated works on land adjacent to Church House Farm, Llanwnog.              
 
One of the developer’s obligations with respect to these planning consents was to fund the 
introduction of modified speed limits along the B4389 (Tregynon) and the B4568 
(Llanwnog) on the immediate approaches to these development sites. As the same 
developer is developing both sites, the local highway authority has agreed that a single 
Traffic Regulation Order could be drawn up to modify the speed limits along those roads 
in both villages. 

 
The developer paid the Council’s fee to process this Permanent Traffic Regulation Order 
in December 2020, and traffic speed surveys along the B4389 at Tregynon were carried 
out in April 2023 following the completion of the new footway to the development site along 
the B4389 by the developer. It was decided to delay the processing of this Order until such 
time that the existing speed limits at Tregynon had been modified by the Welsh 
Government’s legislation to change the restricted road speed limit within Wales from 
30mph to 20mph in September 2023. 

 
The developer will also be funding the required signage associated with the new and 
modified speed limits. 

 
As part of the same traffic regulation order proposal, the local highway authority has taken 
the opportunity to review and modify the existing 40mph speed limit along the remainder 
of the B4568 within the village of Llanwnog as part of the same Traffic Regulation Order 
in response to residents’ concerns regarding the traffic speeds through Llanwnog and to 
make the speed limit through the village of Llanwnog more compliant with the Welsh 
Assembly Government Circular No: 24/2009 “Setting Local Speed Limits in Wales”. 
 
The proposed new Traffic Regulation Order will include the revocation of the existing 
40mph speed limit Order along the B4568 at Llanwnog as identified below to enable the 
new speed limit extents to be more clearly and accurately defined by the new traffic 
regulation Order:- 

 

• The County of Powys (County Class II Road No. B.4568 at Llanwnog) (40 m.p.h Speed 
Limit) Order 1992. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Speed Limit Modifications - Various Roads, Tregynon and Llanwnog
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL
	CABINET MEMBER DELEGATED DECISION
	by
	County Councillor Jackie Charlton
	CABINET Member for A GREENER POWYS
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
	3.	Advice
	Background Papers used to prepare Report:
		Appendix B - Extents of the existing speed limits at Tregynon and Llanwnog along the affected roads.
		Appendix C – Extents of the proposed new and modified speed limits at Tregynon and Llanwnog along the effected roads.
		Appendix D – Council’s Statement of Reasons.
	DELEGATED DECISION NEW REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 4
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D


